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The following questions were submitted to the Bureau of Rail & Transit for additional 
information in response to the Mountain Division and Conway Branch Request for Expressions 
of Interest posted by the NH Department of Transportation (Department). 

The wording of some of the questions below have been expanded and edited slightly to provide a 
coherent question that summarizes the information being requested and the intent of the question 
being asked.  The Department’s answers appear in italic below each question. 

1. Was there a reason that the Groveton Branch was not included in the RFI? 
 
The Groveton Branch was not included in the RFI because there is already a railroad 
operator (New Hampshire Central Railroad – NHCR) that provides freight service on the 
entire line.  Anyone desiring freight service on the line can obtain it from NHCR.  The 
Conway Branch has no operators on the State-owned portion and the Mountain Division 
Line has sections that do not have a railroad operator. 
 

2. The RFI should be modified to correctly show that NHCR has operating rights between MP 
100.8 in Whitefield to Lunenburg, Vt. 
 
The NHCR has operating rights from Whitefield to Lunenburg, VT, but the line is out of 
service due to washouts and disrepair and there is no rail service on the line at this time.  In 
addition, it was left out of the RFI that the operating rights of the previous railroad operator, 
Twin State Railroad, have never been extinguished. 

 
3. Why is the RFI being put out now?  Is there any connection with the Schwanke interest in 

both lines as a possible passenger-freight operator? 
 
Over the last few years there have been several inquiries to the Department about the ability 
to utilize these state-owned railroad lines for additional railroad operations.  The 
Department chose to issue this Request for Expression of Interest. in order to gauge the 
interest level from the private sector, including what type of rail service would be most 
appropriate, and determine if a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) should be developed for 
either or both lines.  



 
 
 

4. What do you know about the ownership in Vermont of the Mountain Division?  Last I knew, 
it was uncertain. 

The State of New Hampshire Department of Transportation purchased the line on January 6, 
2003.  There is still an unresolved issue in which Twin State Railroad‘s operating rights have 
never been extinguished on this section of the line. 

5. Conway Scenic Railroad’s excursions versus a “hotel train” operator – How long does CSRR 
have its “operating rights”? 
 
Conway Scenic currently has an Operating Agreement with the Department and has the 
exclusive right to operate tourist excursion service on the Mountain Division Line.  If 
another through-freight or passenger rail operator enters into an agreement with the 
Department, they will also need to enter into an agreement with Conway Scenic to operate 
that service on the line.  The Department understands there are many issues that will need to 
be resolved between the parties, but believes these other rail services can co-exist with 
Conway Scenic’s current tourist excursion train service. 
 
Conway Scenic Railroad’s current Operating Agreement is in effect until 2024. 

 
6. How long does NHCR have its operating rights on the Groveton Branch? 

NH Central Railroad’s current Operating Agreement is in effect until 2023. 

7. Do you have a map of the two lines labelled? 

Yes, a map has been posted on the Bureau website with the rest of the documents for the 
Mountain Division Railroad Line & Conway Branch Railroad Line Request for Expressions 
of Interest. 

8. Will the presentations be open to the general public or the media to attend?  Will the 
presentation be open to representatives of the railroads potentially impacted by Respondents’ 
proposals? 

The public, including the media and existing railroads operating on the lines, will not be 
allowed to attend the presentations. In order to protect the integrity of the public bidding 
process, the presentations are not open to anyone outside the Respondent’s team and the 
Department’s RFI review team.  The presentations are an extension of, and an explanation 
of, the  formal expressions of interest and are only the first step in a multi-step procurement 
process.   

 

http://www.nh.gov/dot/org/aerorailtransit/railandtransit/index.htm


 

9. While the RFI says no fed funds available, I would think that potential operators could apply 
independently? 

Correct, the RFI stated that there is currently no state of Federal funding available for the 
restoration of the lines, but this does not preclude respondents from obtaining Federal funds 
independently.  

10. Are you looking for operators (as initially indicated in the document) or parties interested in 
moving freight over the line (indicated in the purpose & process)? Or both? 

The purpose of the Request for Expressions of Interest is to gather and gauge the interest 
level from the private sector on the potential rail use of the lines.  Per the Response 
Preparation Instructions, “Submission of interest shall include basic information about the 
type of service proposed…”  Therefore, the Bureau is primarily interested in receiving 
formal expressions of interest from respondents interested in providing rail service on the 
line(s), but it would be helpful for the Bureau to know of parties interested in freight rail 
service on these lines as the Bureau makes its assessment of the Respondent’s proposal and 
for future rail planning. 

11. Will the identity of Respondents selected be made public upon their selection? 
 

Because this is only a Request for Expressions of Interest, there will be no “selected 
respondent” or “selected operator” resulting from this step in the process.  If  the 
Department choses to develop and release an RFP, the RFI will be used as one step in an 
ongoing procurement process.  

 
12. What are the criteria, thresholds and other factors that the Bureau will use to determine if an 

RFP is warranted for operation of Passenger and/or Freight Rail Services over the Mountain 
Division and/or the Conway Branch Line? 

 
The Department will review formal expressions of interests, including presentations, and 
conduct an assessment of the marketplace for commercial rail service on the line; there are 
no available criteria or thresholds at this time.  
 

13. Our preliminary analysis reveals a number of elements and areas of potential tension between 
the future and current Operators. As both the Track Owner and regulating agency, what role 
will the Department play to arbitrate/negotiate differences between the Parties? 

If additional Operating Agreements are eventually issued for services, the Department will 
attempt to resolve as many issues as possible in advance by addressing them in the issuance 
of the new Operating Agreement for the additional operator(s).  While the Department 
cannot envision all the issues that may arise, a concerted effort will be made to ensure the 
safe co-existence of current and future railroad operations on the state-owned railroad lines 



and the Department will help to facilitate discussions and mutually acceptable agreements 
between both parties.  It is also possible that the two operating railroads (current and 
proposed) might need to go to the Surface Transportation Board (STB) to resolve some 
issues that are outside the purview of the Department.   

14. What is the timing for issuing an RFP, if any? 

There is no formal timeframe or commitment that a Request for Proposals (RFP) will be 
issued. 
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